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INTRODUCTION

David J. Bradley, Clerk of Court

At all times material to this Indictment:

1. Defendant VERONICA FRAZIER operated in the Houston area
under various company names, including A&I Trading and Consulting.
2. Straw borrowers are individuals who agree to allow the use of their
name and credit to purchase real property.
3. Defendant VERONICA FRAZIER participated in a mortgage fraud
scheme by recruiting and paying individuals to act as buyers/borrowers (“straw
. borrowers”), and by submitting invoices for payment from loan proceeds.

4. Kirby Lofts was a multi-unit condominium building located in
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downtown Houston, Texas.

5. Ohio Savings Bank, F.S.B. was a financial institution located in
Cleveland, Ohio.

6. Ohio Savings Bank financed the purchase of Kirby Lofts #1101.

7. First Franklin Financial (“First Franklin) was a residential mortgage
lender located in California.

8. First Franklin financed the purchase of Kirby Lofts #1108.

COUNT ONE
(Conspiracy, 18 U.S.C. § 1349)

A. INTRODUCTION

1. The allegations in paragraphs 1-8 of the Introduction of this
Indictment are adopted, realleged, and incorporated as if set out fully
herein.

B. THE CONSPIRACY AND ITS OBJECTS

2. From in or about January, 2006, through in or about October, 2006,
in the Houston Division of the Southern District of Texas, and elsewhere, the
Defendant,

VERONICA FRAZIER

did knowingly combine, conspire, confederate and agree with others known and



unknown to commit the following offense against the United States:

To use interstate and foreign wire facilities for the purpose of executing

a scheme and artifice to defraud and for obtaining money or property by

means of material false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, and

promises, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343.
C. THE MANNER AND MEANS OF THE CONSPIRACY

3. [t was a part of the conspiracy that defendant VERONICA
FRAZIER would and did recruit individuals to act as straw borrowers for
residential loans to purchase units in Kirby Lofts.

4, It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendant VERONICA
FRAZIER and her co-conspirators would and did assist straw borrowers with
providing false information and documents to induce lenders to fund
the purchase of units in Kirby Lofts.

5. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendant VERONICA
FRAZIER and her co-conspirators would and did cause lenders to fund the
purchase of units in Kirby Lofts.

6. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendant VERONICA
FRAZIER and her co-conspirators would and did receive funds from Kirby Lofts

loan proceeds by submitting invoices for payment from loan proceeds.

7. It was a further part of the conspiracy that defendant VERONICA
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FRAZIER and her co-conspirators would and did pay straw borrowers from
Kirby Lofts loan proceeds.

D. OVERT ACTS

8. In furtherance of the conspiracy, and to effect the objects thereof, the
following overt acts, among others, were committed in the Southern District of
Texas:

Kirby Lofts #1101

(1) In or about January, 2006, defendant VERONICA FRAZIER
recruited co-conspirator DW to act as a straw borrower to purchase units in Kirby
Lofts by introducing DW to a co-conspirator for the purpose of “investing.”

(2)  Onorabout January 6, 2006, co-conspirator DW signed and made false
statements on a Uniform Residential loan application to purchase Kirby Lofts #1101,
including the false statements that: (1) he had income of more than $27,000 per
month; (2) that he would occupy Kirby Lofts #1101 as his primary residence; (3) that
he had $100,000 on deposit at Citigroup Bank; and (4) that he received gross rental
monthly income of $3,500 from XXX8 Willow Springs, Manvel, Texas.

(3) On or about January 23, 2006, co-conspirator DW executed an
occupancy affidavit as part of his loan application to Ohio Savings Bank that falsely

stated he would occupy Kirby Lofts #1101 within 60 days of signing the occupancy

4
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affidavit.

(4) On or about January 24, 2006, co-conspirator DW submitted a check at
closing for $64,495.69 that purported to be funds (due) from the buyer, when in truth
and fact the funds did not belong to him and had been given to him by a co-
conspirator.

(5) Onor about January 24, 2006, Ohio Savings Bank funded loans for the
purchase of Kirby Loft unit #1101 in the amounts of $426,205.92 and $58,537.92.

(6)  On or about February 1, 2006, co-conspirator DW deposited a $9,500
“kickback” from the Kirby Lofts #1101 loan proceeds into his bank account at Wells
Fargo bank.

Kirby Lofts #1108

(7)  On or about September 27, 2006, co-conspirator RV signed and made
false statements on a Uniform Residential loan application to purchase Kirby Lofts
#1108, including the false statements that he had income of more than $25,000 per
month and that he would occupy Kirby Lofts #1108 as his primary residence.

(8)  On or about September 27, 2006, defendant VERONICA FRAZIER
submitted or caused to be submitted a fraudulent invoice from A&l Trading &
Consulting for $160,280 for Kirby Lofts unit #1108.

(9)  On or about September 29, 2006, First Franklin funded loans for the
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purchase of Kirby Loft unit #1108 in the amounts of $630,442.78 and $154,832.50.

(10) On or about September 29, 2006, defendant VERONICA FRAZIER
opened a bank account for A&I Trading and Consulting at Enterprise Bank.

(11) On or about September 29, 2006, defendant VERONICA FRAZIER
received a check for $160,280 payable to A&I Trading & Consulting from the loan
proceeds of Kirby Lofts unit #1108.

(12)  On or about October 2, 2006, defendant VERONICA FRAZIER paid
or caused to be paid a $10,000 “kickback” from Kirby Lofts #1108 loan proceeds to
co-conspirator RV, which RV deposited into his bank account at Amegy Bank.

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1349.

COUNTS TWO - FIVE
(Wire Fraud, 18 U.S.C. § 1343)

A. INTRODUCTION

1. The allegations in paragraphs 1-8 of the Introduction of this
Indictment are adopted, realleged, and incorporated as if set out fully herein.
B. THE SCHEME TO DEFRAUD

2. From in or about January, 2006 to in or about October, 2006, in the
Houston Division of the Southern District of Texas, and elsewhere, the defendant,

VERONICA FRAZIER, aided and abetted by others known and unknown to the
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grand jury, did knowingly devise and intend to devise a scheme and artifice to
defraud and for obtaining money and property by means of material false and
fraudulent pretenses, representations and promises.

C. MANNER AND MEANS OF THE SCHEME TO DEFRAUD

[t was a part of the scheme that:

3. VERONICA FRAZIER would and did recruit and pay individuals to
act as borrowers in applications for residential mortgage loans which would fund the
purchase of homes, even though those borrowers had no intention of residing at the
home.

4, VERONICA FRAZIER and co-conspirators known and unknown to
the Grand Jury would and did provide loan applications in the names of borrowers
and provide lenders with false information and documents concerning the borrowers’
employment, income, and intent to occupy the purchased properties.

5. VERONICA FRAZIER and co-conspirators known and unknown to
the Grand Jury would and did cause lenders to fund approximately $1,270,019 in
loans to purchase two units in Kirby Lofts.

6. VERONICA FRAZIER and co-conspirators known and unknown to
the Grand Jury would and did cause fraudulent invoices to be subrnitted to lenders

requesting payment from loan proceeds.
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